
 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

Chairwoman Kates called the meeting to order at approximately 7:30 pm.  Deputy Secretary Janeiro recited 
the Open Public Meeting Statement and Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  
 

Chairwoman M. Kates, Vice Chairman S. Riordan, Mr. E. Alter, Mr. D. Friedman (7:30 
p.m.), Mr. S. Griep, Dr. A. Weinberg, Mr. S. Hipp, Council Liason Trochimiuk and 
Mayor Sheinfield 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

Secretary S. Raymond 

EMPLOYEES PRESENT: 
 

Ms. A. Kasetta, Board Attorney 
Mr. C. Statile, Board Engineer 
Mr. D. Novak, Board Planner 
Ms. T. Janeiro, Deputy Secretary  
 
 

OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda): 
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was 
closed to the public.  
 

INVOICES 

INVOICES – CSG Law Total Motion Second Outcome 

648032 $1000.00 A. Weinberg S. Griep Passed 

648034 $647.50    

648036 $203.50    

648037 $333.00    

648038 $1,220.70    

648039 $851.00    

648040 $814.00    

650965 $333.00    

650966 $55.50    

650967 $639.25    

650968 $55.50    

650971 $1,000.00    

Total -  $7,152.95    

 
 

INVOICES 

INVOICES – Burgis Associates, Inc. Total Motion Second Outcome 

47385 $1422.50 E. Alter S. Griep Passed 

Total -  $1422.50    

 
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 2 of 8 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
September 11, 2025 
 
Motion Second Outcome 
S. Griep E. Alter Passed 

 
 
CONTINUED HEARING 
PZ-7-25 
Block 1208 Lot 1; 560 Piermont Ave. 
Hillsdale Self Storage 
Site Plan 
 
The addresses and Block and Lots are as follows: Block 128, Lot 1; Block 1209, Lots 2, 3 & 4. 560 Piermont 
Avenue; 93, 95 & 97 Prospect Place. 
 
Mayor Sheinfield, Dr. Weinberg and Secretary Raymond have recused themselves, as they all own property 
within 200 ft. of the subject property. 
 
Councilwoman Trochimiuk missed the September 11, 2025 meeting but has certified that she watched the 
recording. She is eligible to vote on this application.  
 
The applicant’s attorney, Jason Tuvel of Prime, Tuvel & Miceli in Hackensack, New Jersey, was present for 
this hearing.  
 
The applicant is Hillsdale Self Storage LLC. 
 
This hearing is a continuation of previous hearings on August 14, 2025 and September 11, 2025. 
 
Mr. Frank Magaletta has been retained from St. John the Baptist Church and the Archdiocese of Newark.  
 
Mr. Tuvel is calling back his traffic engineer to answer some previous board questions.   
 
Mr. Nicholas Verderese from Dynamic Engineering is the applicant’s traffic engineer and will be testifying 
for this application. Mr. Verderese was previously sworn in and is still under oath. 
 
Mr. Verderese conducted traffic counts on the following dates and times: 
 
9/18/2025 7:00am – 9:00am (Thursday) 
9/18/2025 2:00pm – 6:00pm (Thursday) 
9/21/2025 8:00am – 12:00pm (Sunday) 
 
The following exits were observed during peak times: 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 3 of 8 
 

9/18/25 7:00am – 8:00am 13 exits 
9/18/25 3:00pm – 4:00pm 6 exits 
9/21/25 – 11am – 12pm 2 exits 
 
Mr. Verderese discussed all peak numbers. He said, as he previously testified, these locations will have 
insignificant traffic volumes as defined by ITE.  
 
Mr. Tuvel commented that this is a permitted use and traffic counts are not required.  
 
Board Questions of Mr. Verderese: 
 
Mr. Alter: 
Asked about the dates the traffic times were conducted. Mr. Verderese gave the dates and times and 
commented that there was no inclement weather and Sunday mass was in session.  
 
Mr. Griep: 
Questioned the traffic numbers entering, as only exiting was previously discussed. Mr. Verderese went over 
the numbers.  
 
Mr. Hipp: 
Commented that this application is an expansion of use. Questioned the number of parking spaces. Mr. 
Verderese explained how he used the square footage to determine the number of parking spaces.  
 
The meeting was open to the public to ask questions of Mr. Verderese. 
 
Ms. Cathy Mallet – 34 Lake Drive 
Questioned if this was one application for both uses or separate applications. Mr. Tuvel said one 
application for both. 
 
Said there are 800 storage units in the proposed self-storage. Can you accurately estimate the projection of 
traffic. Mr. Tuvel said this was discussed at previous testimony. Mr. Verderese said there is a very 
insignificant traffic generator for these uses.  
 
Ms. Paulette Gilchrist – 124 Saddlewood Drive. 
Asked why the traffic study wasn’t conducted for the 5:00 p.m. Saturday mass. Mr. Verderese replied that 
traffic studies involving churches are typically done on Sundays. Mr. Tuvel said the storage lot has no traffic 
flow at that time.  
 
Mr. Michael Breen – 183 Magnolia Avenue 
Questioned how the traffic study was completed prior to the apartments being finished. Mr. Verderese said 
he didn’t do capacity numbers, and the small amount of traffic from the storage will not affect the nearby 
traffic.  
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Mr. Frank Magaletta – Council for St. John the Baptist Church. 
Currently there are approximately 78 spaces in the lot. Mr. Magaletta asked if the measurements were 
completed in person. Mr. Verderese said he used Google Earth and used the square footage to calculate 
the approximate numbers.  
 
Vice Chairman Riordan spoke about the traffic counts and the times the counts were completed.  
 
Ms. Kasetta stated that the applicant’s civil engineer will return for cross-examination from Mr. Magaletta 
only and will not be open to public questioning.  
 
Mr. Thomas Muller from Dynamic Engineering is appearing to answer any questions that Mr. Magaletta 
has. Mr. Magaletta is appearing as counsel from St. John the Baptist Church and was not at the August 14, 
2025 hearing where Mr. Muller previously testified. 
 
Mr. Magaletta questioned Mr. Muller about the following topics: 
 

• Number of parking spaces 

• Impervious Coverage Calculations 

• Stormwater Management (Current and Proposed) 

• Existing Pipes 

• Removal of Existing Building 

• Design Waivers – Planter Islands 

• Turning Radius 

• Distance from Church 

• Height of Building and First Floor 

• Internal Vehicle Circulation Templets 
 
Mr. Muller said the proposed project would be 5,500 sq. ft. less than what currently exists. The stormwater 
management system will reduce all storm runoff.  
 
Mr. Statile was sworn in. He concurs with the witness. 
 
Mr. Tuvel called his witness. Professional Planner Ms. Elizabeth McManus.  
 
Mr. Magaletta objected to the planner. He said no planner was listed on the application.  
 
Mr. Tuvel said a planner report is not a checklist item, and he does not need to identify all of his witnesses 
previously. This is a permitted use with no variances.  
 
A discussion pertaining to this matter took place. Mr. Statile deemed this application complete. It was 
determined this application can proceed. 
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Ms. Elizabeth McManus is the applicant’s planner and will be testifying for this application. Ms. McManus 
gave her background and experience and was accepted as an expert witness. 
 
Ms. McManus described the site.  
 
Mr. Tuvel went over all of the redevelopment requirements. Ms. McManus stated that this application 
meets all of the requirements.  
 
The vehicle storage and self-storage are both benefits to the surrounding area, as they are both a 
significant improvement to what was previously there.  
 
They are seeking two deviations from §310-104 and §310-106A for the vehicle storage for driveway width.  
24 ft. width is required. Being proposed is 23 ft. on the south side and 22.5 on the north side.  Ms. 
McManus explains the intent of this ordinance and states that they can still meet the intent even with the 
deviations.  
 
A C-2 variance is being requested for two proposed signs on the building. The required sign height is 20 ft., 
and 36 ft. is being proposed.  
 
Ms. McManus explained why the sign is better located at the 36 ft. height. The sign was designed for the 
architecture of the building. She then went over all of the positive and negative criteria for the signs at this 
location. Mr. Tuvel commented that the sign is conforming in size; only the height of the sign is not 
conforming.  
 
Mr. Tuvel asked Ms. McManus if the benefits of the signs outweigh the detriments. She replied yes. 
 
Ms. Manus went over all of the positive and negative criteria for the entire application. She said this 
application is substantially in line with the redevelopment plan. 
 
The meeting was open to the public to ask questions of Ms. McManus. 
 
Mr. Statile: 
What is the downside to having the signs at a compliant location? She replied it will block some of the 
architectural features of the building.  
 
Where are the signs facing? Ms. McManus said one south and one west. One sign is facing the vehicle 
storage lot and the other Prospect. 
 
Can you eliminate windows and make the signs more compliant? Ms. McManus said the windows are 
better architecturally. 
 
All signs will be turned off at 10:00 p.m. 
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Council Liaison Trochimiuk: 
Asked for an explanation of deviations versus variances.  
 
Mr. Friedman: 
What are the deviations? Ms. McManus said two for the driveway width and one variance for the sign 
height. 
 
Questioned the windows in the previous testimony. Windows must be grouped in two and three. Ms. 
McManus said they can satisfy meeting the intent of the ordinance.  
 
Ms. McManus stated that the building as shown on the rendering is no detriment to the public good. 
 
Questioned the drive aisles and what if two vehicles needed to use the drive aisles at the same time.  
 
Asked if ground signage was considered. Ms. McManus replied that there is little ground space for signage. 
 
Questioned the location of the proposed signage. Ms. McManus said the proposed locations were chosen 
as the best locations to help identify the site.  
 
Chairwoman Kates: 
Thought this was going to be a brick building.  
 
Chairwoman Kates asked Mr. Novak if the signs will be a burden to the residents living across from the site. 
He replied it depends on the time of the year.  
 
The building will be 465 ft. from the nearest dwelling. There is the potential that the signs will be seen. 
 
Vice Chairman Riordan: 
Stated that it seems as if you eliminated a single spot, it would eliminate the deviations. 
 
He questioned the turning templets. 
 
Stated that there is nothing in the redevelopment plan regarding signage.  
 
Questioned if you could see through the windows. Ms. McManus said it is vision glass. Vice Chairman 
Riordan stated that they are for visual purposes, and he doesn’t think there would be a public safety issue if 
the windows were removed.  
 
He asked if lowering the signs will have a negative impact. Ms. McManus said it will have a negative impact 
architecturally.  
 
 
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
Mr. Alter: 
Questioned if more light is spread with the sign being higher. Mr. Statile said if the sign is lower, there will 
be less of an illumination seen. 
 
Asked what would happen in the event two vehicles would have to pass one another. Ms. McManus said 
that would not be typical. Mr. Statile said visually the drivers will be able to see one another.  
 
Mr. Hipp: 
Stated that this is a self-inflicted hardship. He does not see the need for the sign on the west side.  
 
Mr. Griep: 
Said that the neighbors across the brook will be able to see this sign anytime it is dark out.  
 
Like the chairwoman, he also believes this building to be predominately brick. Now the building is iron and 
metal slats. He thinks brick would have been a better choice.  
 
A short recess was taken from 9:16pm until 9:22pm. All previous board members and professionals are 
still remaining. 
 
The meeting was open to the public to ask questions of Ms. McManus. 
 
Ms. Rona Weinberg – 180 Saddlewood Drive 
Will you be able to see the sign lights in December? She is very concerned with the sign visuals from 
Saddlewood Drive and the illuminated sign being so high on the building. What is the point of the sign 
being so high?  Ms. McManus said so folks driving along Prospect can see the building. 
 
Ms. Paulette Gilchrist – 124 Saddlewood Drive. 
Spoke about the detriment to the church because of the sign. She said nobody discussed if this sign can be 
seen from Hillsdale Ave. 
 
Mr. Tuvel has announced that the second proposed sign on the westerly side will be removed and the 
remaining sign on the south side will be built to code. The variance for this application is now withdrawn. 
 
The signage for this application is now compliant with the development plan. 
 
 Mr. James Millet – 34 Lake Street 
Asked where the entrance to the storage facility is located. Mr. Tuvel said this was discussed at a prior 
meeting. The location is compliant with the redevelopment plan. 
 
Mr. Magaletta questioned the waivers on this application. 
 



 
 
October 9, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Mr. Magaletta called his first witness. Rev. Msgr. Peter Smutelovic from St. John Baptist Church. Msgr. 
Smutelovic was sworn in and gave his background and experience. 
 
Exhibit 01: Google Aerial Map 
 
Exhibit 02: Flooding photograph taken by Msgr. Smutelovic at 9:45 p.m. on July 14, 2025. 
 
Msgr. Smutelovic described the layout of the property using Exhibit 01. He pointed out the high traffic 
areas. 
 
Mentioned the traffic on Valley Street since the nearby construction of a multi-family dwelling. 
 
Described the type of events and the daily schedules that take place throughout the week on church 
property. 
 
Spoke about the flooding that took place on July 14, 2025 and how it affected the church and the areas 
around the church. 
 
Exhibit 03: Photograph taken at 10:20p.m. on July 14, 2025, by Joseph Gradowski showing Msgr. 
Smutelovic in the flood waters. 
 
Exhibit 04: St. John Church facing Southeast. 
 
Msgr. Smutelovic has nine videos he would like to submit as exhibits. Mr. Tuvel said he objects to Msgr. 
Smutelovic’s testimony. It was discussed previously in this application how the stormwater would be 
mitigated. We are all aware that this area is in a flood zone. 
 
It was decided the videos will be provide to Ms. Kasetta prior to the next hearing.  She will determine if the 
videos should be shown during the next hearing. 
 
This hearing will be carried to the October 28, 2025 hearing. No additional notice is required.  
 
DISCUSSION 
No discussion took place.  
 
OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda): 
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was 
closed to the public.  
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
Next Public Hearing - Tuesday, October 28, 2025 7:30 pm; Borough Hall Council Chambers. 


